
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 
AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Tuesday, February 18th, 2025 
In-Person, Council Chambers/Large Meeting Room 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 
 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       
       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  
      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.   

 
I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann 

 
II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:  

Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council action (making 
motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.   

 
III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 

Note – All Times are approximate  
 

A) CATA / Transportation Task Force – 30 Minutes 
B) Parkview Blvd & Airport Roads Traffic Signal Update/Discussion-25 Minutes 

    
IV. ADJOURNMENT 
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is 
scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.  
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Ralph Stewart

From: Ralph Stewart
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 10:13 AM
To: Nicholas Schaefer
Cc: Julie Brooks
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024

Thanks 
 
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
 

From: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 9:36 AM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Re: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 
 
Tate is his last name.  
 
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 9:28:29 AM 
To: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024  
  
Thank you Nick!  
  
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
  

From: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 9:27 AM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
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Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Re: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 
  
He is the traffic signal supervisor for PennDOT District 2-0.   
  
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 9:25:24 AM 
To: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024  
  
No problem Nick. This is what we were looking for as far as a clear yes or no.  Who is Jon?   
  
Thanks, 
Ralph  
  
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
  

From: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 9:17 AM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Re: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 
  
Sorry, that was Penndots reply to me about the RRFB question.   
  
Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 9:15:59 AM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Re: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024  
  
Nick, 
  
This is straight from the Interim approval of RRFB’s  
  
An RRFB shall not be used for crosswalks across approaches controlled by YIELD signs, STOP signs, or traffic 
control signals. This prohibition is not applicable to a crosswalk across the approach to and/or egress from a 
roundabout.  
  
I think Trans Associates has it covered by providing the Type C(piano) crosswalks, LPI, and APS buttons.  
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Jon 

Get Outlook for iOS 

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 28, 2025 1:34:29 PM 
To: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Cc: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 

Hi Nick, 
I meant to get back to you earlier but didn’t.   Yes, would you please check with Penn DoT to see if a beacon lighted 
crosswalk is permitted at a signalized intersection.  I have some council members that want to know with certainty.  

You mentioned that if we tied in a sidewalk, we might have a better chance at grants. What about a sidewalk from the 
Airport Road (new signal and crosswalk) along Zion Road to the Parkview Intersection (new signal and crosswalk)?   With 
respect to the HOP process is it too late to think about this or consider it?  If so, we could try applying for a grant that 
would help with the signal and walk. 

Thoughts? 

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
Sent: Thursday, January 23, 2025 1:45 PM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 

Good afternoon Ralph, 

See below in red. 

Regards, 
Nick 

Nicholas J. Schaefer, PE, PTOE 
Principal | Transportation Services 
Trans Associates Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
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Office:  814-231-4812 
Cell:  814-470-6569 
www.transassociates.com 
  

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, January 23, 2025 9:42 AM 
To: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 
  
Hi Nick 
I was in a meeting yesterday and a few questions came up related to the traffic signals at Airport and Zion Roads. 
  
For Airport Road, will there be a crosswalk and pedestrian signal across Airport Road?  Yes, and we’ve asked them to use 
the ladder type crosswalk markings and countdown pedestrian signals we have proposed at Parkview.  They have 
updated their plan as such.  Will there be any crosswalk across Bishop St./Zion Road?  (we know that there really isn’t a 
place to go, but wanted to ask).  There is no crossing permitted across 550.  Would the Boro want a crossing?  Do you 
have the latest diagram that is under consideration?  Yes, it is attached. 
  
For Parkview Blvd., we have a crosswalk across Zion Road, correct?  Yes, on the eastern side of the intersection.  Do we 
have the pedestrian signals there?  Yes, the countdown type.  Is there a crosswalk across Parkview?  Yes.  Can you send 
the latest diagram?  It is attached. 
  
For all of these crosswalks, is it a possibility to add the Pedestrian Rapid Flashing beacons?  (we have not seen the 
beacons used in conjunction with a traffic signal, but it was suggested)  I have never seen them at a signalized crossing. 
In my opinion, they are not really needed since the pedestrians will have a designated phase to cross. They are normally 
installed when traffic yields to pedestrians, not when they are stopped for a red signal.  If the Boro wants me to ask 
PennDOT to consider them I can.   
  
For funding, we are looking at the Penn DoT and the DCED Multi Modal grant opportunities coming up.  We are not sure 
about the timing of the grants and when we would be bidding out, etc.  Any thoughts on this?  I don’t have much 
experience in using those grants for multimodal.  Something which may make it more enticing would be if sidewalk was 
added along the southern side of 550 to connect the two signals to provide a walking path for students/parents. 
  
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
Sent: Monday, January 20, 2025 8:45 AM 
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To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 
  
Thank you. 
  
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
Sent: Friday, January 17, 2025 3:02 PM 
To: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 
  
Hi Nick, 
  
I have attached the signed TE-160  form.  I will be sending the other forms to Nikki at HRG. I will copy you in. 
  
Thanks, 
Ralph  
  
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
  

From: Ralph Stewart  
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2025 1:05 PM 
To: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 
  
Hi Nick, 
Yes, Don retired. No, we haven’t hired anyone yet.  Yes, running crazy! Lol  
  
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
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2025 10:25 AM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 

I didn’t know Don retired!  Has a new assistant been hired?  Or are you now running even crazier?  HAHA 

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
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2025 10:12 AM 
To: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Cc: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 

Thanks Nick for the update!  We will take care of this invoice. 

__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

From: Nicholas Schaefer <schaefern@transassociates.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, January 15, 2025 10:00 AM 
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To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Donald Holderman <dholderman@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Trans Associates Invoice and Status Letter | December 2024 

Good afternoon Ralph, 

Hope things are well.  And poof, another year gone!  Attached is the December 2024 invoice and status letter for 
services performed on behalf of the Borough.  If there are any questions or concerns please feel free to reach out. 

Parkview is ready to be resubmitted, just waiting on an answer from PennDOT on phasing. 

Thank you for your continued trust in Trans Associates. 

Regards, 
Nick 

Nicholas J. Schaefer, PE, PTOE 
Principal | Transportation Services 
Trans Associates Engineering Consultants, Inc. 

Office:  814-231-4812 
Cell:  814-470-6569 
www.transassociates.com 
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Council Business Meeting 

AGENDA 

7:30 PM Tuesday, February 18th, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambers/Large Meeting Room, 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

III. ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, North Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, Pro Temp, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Ms. Dann, President, South Ward  Mr. Larson, Jr. Council Member  

Mr. Johnson, Vice-President, North Ward  Mayor Johnson, At Large  

Ms. McKean, West Ward    

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Under Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council may not take official action on it with the 

following exceptions. Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies. Council may add a 

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. The council must state why the action item is 

being added to the Agenda. Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it has been duly 

made and seconded.  The order of comment will be public comment and then council comment including, proposed 

amendments by council members.  If amendments are proposed to the original motion, the public will then only 

comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are taken.  You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit 

representative, business owner, or an official representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify 

themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three 

(3) minutes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at 

www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON. The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits. 
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VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
Centre County Transportation Update, February 2025. FYI, No council action is requested. 

Mill Race Bridge Replacement Onsite Meeting Minutes. Project is scheduled for 2026. FYI, No council action is 
requested. 

Email - Consider a pesticide/herbicide spray ban for absentee landlords in Bellefonte Borough. This topic may be 
considered for a future agenda and action item.  FYI, No council action is requested at this time. 
Email -Thank you from Mark Stitzer for the Work Session to discuss the lighting issue in Masullo Park. FYI, No 
council action is requested. 
Letter - BASD School Directors changed compensation rates for elected Real Estate Tax Collectors whose term begins 
in 2026. FYI, No council action is requested. 
Email – Community Groups planning to meet to discuss common issues. The meeting will be held at 6:30PM on 
Wednesday, March 5th in the Oak Room, 1st Floor, 301 North Spring Street.  Elected officials are welcome to attend. 
FYI, no council action is requested.  
Letter - Spring Township is concerned with the Big Spring Well Drilling Project.  
 
Letter – Response to Spring Township from Bellefonte Borough Authority on Exploring the Placement of Wells in the 
Expanded Area of Talleyrand Park.  
 
Letter-Stage information received on February 14, 2025. 
 
Email Exchange– Borough Authority and Stage at Talleyrand Committee re: Big Spring wells project, asking to be put 
on an agenda, and to have a definitive timeline.  Council may take action or consider scheduling discussion/action at 
another time. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will be 

no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for separate 

action.  Motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda.   

Finance Budget v. Actual January 2025 

Finance Budget v. Actual Summary January 2025 

General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes February 3rd, 2025 

General Solicitor Stover Invoice  

Finance Treasurer’s Report January 2025 

Finance Voucher Summary January 2025 

 

VIII. REPORTS 
Elected Official and Staff Reports 
Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 
➢ Proclamation-School Resource Officer Awareness Day February 15, 2025 

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Police 
➢ January 2025 Report 
➢ Paul Miller’s Law (Hands Free Law)  

Chief Witmer Submitted 

Parking 
➢ January 2025 Report 

Ms. McCullough Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA): See memo for report and updates Ms. Thompson Submitted 

Borough Manager 
➢ January 2025 Report  

Mr. Stewart Submitted 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet February 18, 2025

Page 15 of 147



 

Liaison Reports 

Reports will be submitted in writing for inclusion in the council meeting materials. Reports may include draft 

meeting minutes, notes, memos, etc. No verbal report is to be given unless there is a question regarding the 

report. If council action is requested, please clearly indicate it, including the wording, so that it can be stated 

on the council meeting agenda. 
ADMINISTRATIVE LIAISON REPORT 

Bandshell/Performance Center Project Committee  Mr. Stewart   

Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority (BAIDA) Mr. Stewart   

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services  Mr. Rhoat   

Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce Ms. Brooks   

Bellefonte Police Pension Board Mr. Stewart   

Centre County Boroughs Association  Ms. Dann   

Centre County Government  Mr. Stewart   

CNET Board of Directors Mr. Stewart   

Governor’s Park  Mr. Stewart   

Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority Mr. Stewart   

Penn State University Sustainability Projects Mr. Stewart   

Shade Tree Commission Ms. Brooks  

Union Cemetery Association  Mr. Stewart   

Zoning Hearing Board Ms. Thompson  

AUTHORITIES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Borough Authority  Mr. D. Johnson  Submitted 

Centre County Airport Authority  Mr. D. Johnson  Submitted 

COMMISSIONS / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Civil Service Commission Mr. Brachbill Submitted 

Spring Creek Watershed Commission  Mr. Brachbill   

 SPECIAL COMMITTEES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Centre County Library Board  Ms. Cleeton Submitted 

Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) Public Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Talleyrand Park Committee  Ms. Dann    

Workplace Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill  

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS / APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC) Ms. Thompson  

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO)  Mr. D. Johnson   

 

IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
Shade Tree Commission Volunteer Application. A legal opinion has been requested.  FYI, no council action is 
requested at this time.   
Light at Masullo Park Update. Staff contacted West Penn Power (WPP) about taking out the light. WPP said to pull the 
photo cell. Our staff did that and the light is out.  Staff is researching LED options.  FYI, no council action is requested 
at this time.  
RACP Funding for the Waterfront Project.  The owners have a Cooperation Agreement with the Borough. The owners 
are submitting new forms to the PA DCED and need Council approval and official signing.  Motion/2nd for approval of 
the forms to be submitted to PA DCED and to be signed, continent upon all Cooperation Agreements being 
reviewed and updated where needed.  It is further motioned that Council strongly encourages the owners to break 
ground on this long-anticipated economic development project as soon as possible.   

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

2025 Paving Bid opening. Motion/2nd to allow staff to review, make deletions to fit the budget, approve the lowest 

responsible bid.  
Letter from Chief Witmer requesting Ordinance amendment Chapter 108 Police. Motion/2nd to approve advertising 
Ordinance amendment for Council vote on March 3rd, 2025.  
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Approval of Resolution No. 02182025-01 Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies. Motion/2nd to approve 
Resolution No. 02182025-01 Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies. 
Consider Approval of issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Grant Writing Services. Motion/2nd to approve the 
motion as stated.   
Cooperation Agreement Approval.  Owners of the former Sutton Engineering property (also known as Bellefonte Works) 
on South Potter Street, received a RACP Grant several years ago that is passing through the Borough.  Owners are 
interested in making improvements to the property.  Owners must have the Borough’s Assistance with this Grant. The 
Agreement states the obligations of the owners.  Motion/2nd to approve the Borough assisting with this Grant 
contingent upon the owners entering into a Cooperation Agreement with the Borough.   

 

XI.  PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting agenda.  Speakers 

shall identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are 

limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 

 
XII.    COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – Personnel Matters  

 

The Council Public Comment Policy and the 2025 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda.  
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Centre County Transportation Update – February 2025 

1 

 

Pennsylvania REAL ID 
Driver’s License 

 
 Beginning May 7, 2025, Pennsylvanians 
will need a REAL ID-compliant driver’s 
license/photo ID card, or another form of 
federally acceptable identification to: 
 
You NEED a REAL ID to: 

• board a domestic commercial flight 
• enter a federal building 
• military installation that requires ID. 

 
To help ensure Pennsylvanians are prepared 

for the upcoming federal REAL ID enforcement 
deadline of May 7, 2025, the Pennsylvania 
Department of Transportation (PennDOT) 
announced that it will hold special REAL ID 
service hours at its Clearfield Driver License 
Center at 1800 Daisy Street Suite 380, Clearfield 
on February 10, from 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM.   
 
 
PennDOT Yellow Dot Safety 

Program 
  
 Pennsylvania’s Yellow Dot Program was 
created to assist citizens in the “golden hour” of 
emergency care following a traffic crash when 
they may not be able to communicate 
themselves. Placing a yellow dot in your 
vehicle’s rear window alerts first responders to 
check your glove compartment for vital 
information to ensure that you receive the 
critical medical attention you need. 
 

 

 How can citizens participate in the 
Yellow Dot Safety Program? 

 
First, go online and complete a personal 

information participation form to join. PennDOT 
will mail you a Yellow Dot kit. 

 
Second, when it arrives, complete the kit by 

adding information about: 
• who to call in an emergency. 
• your medical history. 
• any medicines you take. 
• any things you're allergic to; and 
• the name and contact information for 

your doctor. 
 

Next, put a photo showing only your head 
and shoulders in the booklet and stick it in your 
car's glove compartment. 
 

Finally, put the Yellow Dot sticker on the 
bottom left of your car's back window, not 
higher than 3 inches from the bottom. 
 

Work Zone Safety 
 

 
 

If you encounter our work zones, please 
keep the following tips in mind for your safety 
and the safety of highway workers. 

 
Plan Your Trip – you may avoid travel delays if 
you choose an alternative route around the 
work zone 

 
Obey Flaggers – Flaggers authority overrides 
conventional control devices 
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Centre County Transportation Update – February 2025 
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Double your Following Distance – the most 
common crash type in work zones is the rear-
end collision 

 
Proceed cautiously – Keep moving at a safe 
speed as you drive through the work zone; do 
not slow or stop to watch roadwork 

 
• Drive the posted work zone speed limit. 
• Stay alert and pay close attention to 

signs and flaggers. 
• Turn on your headlights if signs instruct 

you to do so. 
• Maintain a safe distance around 

vehicles. Don't tailgate. 
• Use four-way flashers when stopped or 

traveling slowly. 
• Avoid distractions and give your full 

attention to the road. 
• Always buckle up. 
• Expect the unexpected. 
• Be patient. 

 
Posted Work Zones Laws 

 
Headlights on. All motorists are required to 
travel with their headlights turned on in all 
posted work zones, not just active work zones. 
It is necessary for drivers in vehicles with 
daytime running lights to turn on their 
headlights to activate their taillights. 
 
Speed-monitoring devices. Interstate work 
zones with a project cost exceeding $300,000 
will have a speed-monitoring device to alert 
motorists of their speed prior to entering the 
work zone. 

 
Active Work Zones 

Violations and Fines 
 

Criminal Violations under 75 Pa. C.S. § 3326 -
Duty of drivers in construction and maintenance 
areas or on highway safety corridors identify 
fines and penalties when an officer pulls you 
over for a violation.  

Posting of active work zones. Active work 
zones must be designated as such to notify 
motorists when they enter and leave the work 
zone. A white flashing light attached to the 
"Active Work Zone When Flashing" sign will 
indicate an active work zone. The flashing light 
will only be activated when workers are present 
and turned off when workers are not present.  

 
Fifteen-day loss of license for driving 

dangerously. Motorists who are caught driving 
11 miles per hour or more above the posted 
speed limit in an active work zone, or who are 
involved in a crash in an active work zone and 
are convicted for failing to drive at a safe speed, 
automatically will lose their license for 15 days. 

 
Fines doubled/jail time increased. Fines for 

certain traffic violations — including speeding, 
driving under the influence, and failure to obey 
traffic devices — are doubled for active work 
zones. Also, the law provides for up to five years 
of additional jail time for individuals convicted 
of homicide by vehicle for a crash that occurred 
in an active work zone. 

 

 
 

Civil Violations under 75 Pa. C.S. § 3369 - 
Automated speed enforcement systems in 
active work zones began in 2018. Section 3369 
allows for a fine to be administered using 
calibrated and tested automated speed 
enforcement technology. Civil violations are 
only fines and don't reflect any points or 
insurance ratings.  
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Meeting Minutes 
 
 
Date: 1/17/2025 Location: 325 W High St. Bellefonte, PA 

Project Name: Centre County_ Bellefonte Borough  
SR 3006-A04 over Mill Race Bridge 
Replacement 

Project No.: MPMS#76162 
 

Subject: Design Field View Meeting Minutes Scribe: Scott Trout 
 

Attendees:  Representing:  E-mail Address: 
Michelle Mays PennDOT PM  mimays@pa.gov 

Scott Trout Erdman Anthony  trouts@erdmananthony.com 

Todd Smeltz Erdman Anthony  smeltztb@erdmananthony.com 
Harrison Peacock PennDOT Env.  hpeacock@pa.gov 

Jesse Mullins PennDOT Utilities  jemullins@pa.gov 

Cody Dezanet PennDOT ESTI  cdezanet@pa.gov 
Buddy Brown PennDOT Env.  bybrown@pa.gov 

Pat Federinko PennDOT ROW  pfederinko@pa.gov 

Andrew Nelson PennDOT Construction  annelson@pa.gov 
Matt Auman Bellefonte Borough  mauman@bellefontepa.gov 

Jon Tate  PennDOT Traffic  jtate@pa.gov 

David Schwab  PennDOT Geotech  davschwab@pa.gov 

Chris Coble  PennDOT Bridge  chrcoble@pa.gov 
Ralph Stewart  Bellefonte Borough  rstewart@bellefontepa.gov 

Julie Brooks  Bellefonte Borough  jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov 

Marc Maney  PennDOT Construction  mamaney@pa.gov 
Dave Liptak  PennDOT Construction  dliptak@pa.gov 

Preston Mullins  PennDOT Traffic  pmullins@pa.gov 

David Wachob  PennDOT P&P  dwachob@pa.gov 
Jim Saylor  CCMPO  jsaylor@crcog.net 

Craig Sattesahn  PennDOT Design Services  csattesahn@pa.gov 

     
 

 

 
A Design Field View meeting was held on site for the SR 3006-A04 over Mill Race Bridge Replacement in 
Bellefonte Borough, Centre County on Friday January 17, 2025 at 1 pm.  
 
After introductions, Michelle gave a detailed overview of the project highlighting design criteria, 
environmental criteria, safety/crash history and proposed traffic/pedestrian detours for SR 3006 (W 
High St.). A recent utility meeting was also discussed for consideration of constructability. Cost is 
currently estimated at $2.5 million.  
 
Michelle opened the meeting up to comments from the units represented at the meeting.  
 
Sidewalk locations that will receive ADA ramps at their termini were reviewed. Currently two (2) at 
Dunlop St. and one (1) adjacent to the railroad station parking lot were identified that will be designed in 
final design.  
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SR 3006-A04 (MPMS#76162) Design Field View Meeting 
1/17/2025 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
Signing and Pavement Marking Plan:  
Michelle commented that parking spots should be 20’ from crosswalks.  
Michelle discussed the proposed parking pavement markings with Borough representatives. It was 
discussed that multiple parking spots were removed to accommodate adequate sight distances and 
clearance from crosswalks and side streets. Borough officials were in general agreement with the safety 
requirements and would take the supplied plans back to their council for further review.  
 
Structures: 
It was questioned how top of streambed was determined. Scott responded that a mix of scanning and 
typical survey was utilized to develop existing elevations. It was suggested that cores could be taken at 
structure to ensure appropriate clearance/rise of culvert was selected as the top of bottom slab is 
proposed to be matching upstream/downstream inverts/channel bathymetry.  
 
Access for removal of final form work was discussed. The cast in place end tie ins will require access to 
still be maintained from the north/downstream end of the structures to access and removal form work 
after construction.  
 
The water line currently running through the existing structure (parallel to SR 3006 centerline) will need 
to be accommodated in final design of the box culvert.  
 
Access to Dunlop St. during box culvert placement was discussed. West High St. between Dunlop St. and 
Water St. should be closed to accommodate crane placement and box culvert segment deliveries on day 
of installation. 
 
Regarding the crane, max crane boom and distance to railroad tracks should be evaluated to ensure that 
flagging operations will not be required during culvert segment placement. If the potential boom length 
(tipped over) could reach the railroad tracks then flagging should be coordinated with the railroad.  
 
Geotechnical – it was noted that over excavation may be required for the box culvert construction due 
to strata composition. This will be verified in development of the final structure foundation report.  
 
Environmental:  
 
Buddy gave an overview of where the project stands for environmental clearance and noted that the 
fish within the Mill Race will be moved by the contractor. A specification has been provided by the 
District to consultants for inclusion in the contract documents. PA Fish and Boat had expressed interest 
in volunteering to move the fish, however, the task will be assigned to the contractor and the PA Fish 
and Boat can participate/oversee the operations. Buddy estimated the task would take hours and be 
done with the use of kick nets moving from the upstream gate at Spring Creek through the project site 
downstream to Gamble Mill.  
 
Excavation should be monitored for archeology. Buddy noted that when the contractor is digging in the 
southeast quadrant that a District environmental representative would need to be on site to monitor.  
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SR 3006-A04 (MPMS#76162) Design Field View Meeting 
1/17/2025 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Buddy noted environmental clearance is on pace to be issued the week of 1/20/25.  
Scott offered that the GP-11 permit package was on pace for internal review week of 1/20/25 with 
delivery for District review soon after.  
  
Traffic: 
 
The District traffic unit commented on the temporary access to Dunlop street should utilize stop signs 
instead of yield signs. Final design will look at additional signage. Possibly use a “yield to oncoming 
traffic” in addition to the suggested stop signs.   
 
In addition to the stop signs, the District requested that channelizing devices and signage make it clear 
for those accessing/leaving Dunlop Street are aware which lanes to use given proximity to Water Street 
intersection.  
 
It was noted that a detour approval form would be required in final design. Additionally, timing 
adjustments for the Lamb Street/Water Street Intersection signals will be required.  
 
The District questioned whether a turn template had been run for the entrance into Dunlop Street while 
the detour is in place.    
 
The signalized intersection of Water St. and High Street utilizes radar. There is concern that the 
reflectivity of the proposed traffic signs will falsely prompt the signal. It was suggested that an item for 
signal modification be included in final design to address the concern.  
 
Planning and Programming: 
Planning & Programming requested that costs estimates be updated regularly as the plans progress in 
final design.  
 
Other:  
There is to be a stamped concrete cross walk at the western limit of work adjacent to the railroad tracks. 
The Borough has a special provision that can be supplied for use that will match various other cross 
walks within the Borough. It was discussed that the special provision is similar to stamped sidewalks 
used throughout the County/District.  
 
Paving limits should be reviewed for the need of flagging operations at railroad.  
 
 
This is the writer’s interpretation of the above meeting.  If there are any issues that need to be revised or discussed, please inform the 
author within five days of receiving the minutes. 
 

Next Meeting: As Required   
Copies: Todd Smeltz 

       Scott Trout 
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Ralph Stewart

From: GENEVIEV SHULICK <gshulick@comcast.net>
Sent: Saturday, February 8, 2025 2:15 AM
To: Barbara Dann
Cc: Ralph Stewart; jtosty-vasey@bellefontepa.gov
Subject: Request for ordinance on spraying of herbicides

TO: Barbara Dann, President, Bellefonte Boro Council  
   
DATE:  February 7, 2025  
   
SUBJECT:  Request for ordinance outlawing the spraying of hazardous herbicides by absentee 
landlords on or near rental properties where renters and public can be exposed  
   
Background:  The absentee owner of 129 East Linn Street has repeatedly sprayed hazardous 
herbicides containing neurotoxins around this property for years.  Despite numerous attempts to get 
the Boro to issue an ordinance against such dangers, the Boro Council has failed to act.  Once again, 
a request is being made for the Boro to enact such an ordinance.  
   
The pesticide being used by the owner is 30% acetic acid.  Acetic acid at this concentration is 
hazardous.  It can cause irritation to the eyes, nose, and throat, and skin, upper respiratory 
tract irritation, dermatitis, et cetera.  The acid is corrosive to the skin at concentrations of 25% 
or more.  A copy of the Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) on “Harris 30% Vinegar” (acetic) 
acid at this concentration can be found on the internet.  See also 
https://en.wikipeda.org/wiki/Acetic_acid.  
   
Examples of exposure:  
   
--When three painters were painting the house about two years ago, the owner was in the patio 
spraying herbicide – endangering the health of painters working on ladders – and showed no concern 
for the safety of the workers.  
   
--Around Labor Day 2024, the owner sprayed the herbicide on grass along the joints of the sidewalk, 
causing grass in those cracks to turn brown by the next day.  The following day, a male teacher at 
Bellefonte Elementary School walked his entire class of students directly over the sprayed 
sidewalk.  Herbicide can get on the bottom of shoes and be tracked into school rooms.  Children in 
elementary school commonly sit on the floor to do assignments and play games.  Other residents 
walk their dogs and baby carriages along the sidewalk.  Herbicide can be picked up on the paws of 
dogs and wheels of baby carriages.  
   
-- On the same day in September 2024, he sprayed cracks along the stone walkway from the 
sidewalk up to the porch of 129 East Linn where residents walk to enter the house; residents can 
track herbicides into the house especially when the stones are damp.  
   
--On the same day, he sprayed a large area to the left of the house where apartments in the house 
have individual waste cans; when residents walked on the semi-grassy area, they could have tracked 
herbicide into the house.  
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--On the same day, he sprayed the large patio behind the red wooden fence to right of the house; 
residents who walk through the patio to reach their apartment can get herbicide residue on the bottom 
of their shoes and track it into their apartment.  Fumes can also the apartments facing the patio.  
   
--On the same day, he sprayed around the fire hydrant near the driveway where borough employees 
who maintain the hydrant can be exposed to herbicide or when borough employees are emptying 
trash cans that are placed next to it.  
   
--On the same day, the owner sprayed around the brown maple tree in the medium between sidewalk 
and road; herbicide can seep into soil and damage roots of the tree; dogs sometimes walk to the tree 
to urinate, and their paws can be exposed; the brown grass the herbicide created was also unsightly;  
   
--On another occasion, the owner sprayed herbicide around the trunks of several pine trees near 
back alley of the house where people frequently walk their dogs.  
   
--In 2024 this author and resident of the house on the right developed an itchy rash on the upper neck 
on an exposed area after working in her yard right next to bushes and weeds in his yard that might 
have been sprayed by the herbicide.  Several years ago, also, a bad nose bleed developed on the 
evening of a day when he had sprayed in the patio, and it was not known at the time that he was 
spraying because of a wooden wall around the patio. The spraying was seen later when looking out 
the window.  
   
Complaints about this spraying were made to the Boro on several occasions but no action was taken. 
   
July 30, 2019 – Complaint to Borough  
June 12, 2021 – Complaint to Borough  
August 30, 2024 – Complaint to Borough  
   
The spraying of hazardous herbicide is a danger to the health of residents, including neighbors, 
pedestrians, pets and wildlife.  
   
Once again, it is highly recommended that Bellefonte Borough pass an ordinance to restrict 
the use of herbicides in public places and rental properties where the public and tenants can 
be exposed to these dangerous chemicals.  
   
Genevieve Shulick  
135 East Linn Street  
Bellefonte, PA  16823-1703  
   
gshulick@comcast.net  
Tel:  814-355-5235  
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Ralph Stewart

From: Mark Stitzer <mark_6275@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, February 4, 2025 9:31 AM
To: Ralph Stewart
Cc: Buddy Johnson
Subject: Meeting follow-up

Mr. Stewart, Mr. Johnson,  
 
I wanted to send a quick note to thank you and the rest of the council for your help in addressing my concern regarding 
the lighting at Masullo Park.  This was my first experience with the borough in this manner, and everyone was very 
responsive and made the process approachable and respectful. 
  
I do believe the decision to add the light was well meaning the motives were justified, but I think after the meeting we 
were all in agreement that the actual implementation was just not the most appropriate for a public park.  Should 
lighting continue to be deemed necessary down the road, I hope there is an option that accomplishes that goal while 
also creating a unified look that matches the other downtown parks.  I know money is always the biggest barrier to 
these things, but hopefully a solution, perhaps the solar powered decorative posts option mentioned in the meeting, will 
be available to us.  A couple of perimeter light posts like those in Tallyrand and a basic walking path would be a perfect 
addition to Masullo. 
Thank you again for your help and your work continuing to make Bellefonte the best small town in the area.  
 
Mark Stitzer 
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Ralph Stewart

From: Phil Breidenbaugh <breidenbaugh.p@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2025 8:03 PM
To: PAMP; Jennilyn Schuster; Joseph Griffin; Brawley, Stephen
Cc: Ralph Stewart; Alyssa Doherty; Julie Brooks
Subject: Bellefonte Borough Organizational Summit Meeting #1

Thank you to all of you and your organizations for agreeing to meet together to discuss our different organizational goals 
and potential avenues for better communication, collaboration and efficiency.  
 
I have reserved the Oak Room at the Bellefonte borough building at 301 N Spring Street on Wednesday March 5th at 
6:30 pm to hold a summit meeting to discuss our various organizations and start exploring ideas on how to work best 
together.  Each organization is undergoing some level of change or reorganization so it seems (to me) like a good time to 
consider alternative ways to operate.  
 
The organizations (leaders) that are targeted in this discussion include.  
1. Downtown Bellefonte Inc (DBI) (Steve Brawley) 
2. Historic Bellefonte Inc (HBI) (Pat McCool) 
3. Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce (Jennilyn Schuster) 
4. Bellefonte Historic and Cultural Association (BHCA) (Joseph Griffin) 
Feel free to bring along another board member from your group. Try to keep it at 2 as the room has limited occupancy.  
 
Please know that other stakeholders may be invited to the meeting such as Happy Valley Adventure Bureau, Centre 
County and Bellefonte Borough Government, CBICC.   
 
I commit to providing an agenda for the evening to help guide our discussion but each of you will have an opportunity to 
express your perspectives.   
 
Thanks again for being willing to be a part of the meeting.  
 
Feel free to contact me with other questions.    
 
Phil Breidenbaugh 
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Ralph Stewart

From: Rick Jacobs <rjacobs@talogy.com>
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2025 4:21 PM
To: Ralph Stewart
Cc: Frank Halderman; Doug Johnson; Jean Ryan; TABathgate70@gmail.com; Tom Wilson; 

Holly Wilson
Subject: RE: Direct Contact with Authority Engineer 

Ralph, after all these years of knowing each other I believe it would have been far 
more effective for you to have picked up the phone or asked me to come in to talk 
about the issues.  To that end, I would like to meet with you next week to discuss 
your email and beyond.  Please let me know your availability for a meeting. 
 
Here are my thoughts about your email from this morning and what I want to 
discuss: 
 

1. As a citizen of the Borough, I have every right to seek out information that 
impacts me, my family, and the broader community, which includes our 
project for a Stage in Talleyrand Park.  The Borough and/or the Water 
Authority cannot deny me that right.  Your wording of this morning’s email is 
dangerously close to violating my rights, “Please discontinue any and all direct 

communications with any of the consultants working on behalf of the Borough Authority.” 
 

2. As a consultant to the Water Authority, Jean and her team have every right 
to ask you if they should respond or if you want to respond to such 
inquiries.  You have every right to instruct Jean not to respond and you can 
respond if you so choose, or do nothing, which apparently is exactly what 
happened after my note of January 9 of this year.  My simple question 
regarding any flexibility regarding placement of the wells is still unanswered. 

 
3. Over the past month, I have made no attempt to pursue an answer from 

Jean, the Borough or the Water Authority.  My conclusion was she was 
instructed not to respond and I respected that decision.  I got that 
undelivered message and that is why there have been no further attempts, 
making your email this morning unnecessary and offensive.  I will drop it for 
now but I am curious regarding the legality of a public official making the 
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statement you made.  I believe the Borough spent time and energy last year 
dealing with an attempt to cutoff public dialogue. 
 

4. Interestingly enough, it was your email to me, copying Jean on November 8, 
2024 that provided me with her email address and the ability to reach 
out.  Providing her email address indicated to me that I could contact 
her.  If it was your intent for me to only go through you, I see including her 
email as your error. 

 
5. After your email of this morning (see below) please find a complete 

accounting of the emails I have sent to Jean pertaining to the project.  I 
have been told by others on the Stage Committee that they have not 
contacted Jean regarding the project.  As you can see during your review of 
the emails, there is really no request for information beyond basic, simple 
information. 
 

6. Finally, I am formally requesting time with the Borough Council, either during 
a work session or a regular meeting to present where we are with the Stage 
project.  I will provide a full packet of information prior to the meeting so 
the Council Members can review before my presentation.  Following that 
meeting, at the first available Council meeting, the committee would like a 
formal vote, Yes or No, on whether we can move forward with our project. 

 
 
 

CONFIDENTIAL 

From: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov>  
Sent: Friday, February 7, 2025 10:23 AM 
To: Rick Jacobs <rjacobs@talogy.com> 
Cc: Frank Halderman <fhalderman@comcast.net>; Doug Johnson <djohnson@bellefontepa.gov>; Jean Ryan 
<jryan@bartonandloguidice.com> 
Subject: Direct Contact with Authority Engineer  
 

CAUTION: This email has originated from outside of Talogy. Do not click links or open attachments unless you can 
confirm the sender and know the content is safe. Please report all phishing emails to See Something Say Something.  

Hello Rick, 
 
Last evening, the Authority discussed an issue that they were made aware of.  That issue is you and possibly your fellow 
Stage representatives directly communicating with the Authority’s engineer.  The Authority wants you to know that that 
practice is not acceptable.  The Authority is the body that sets the policies and rates for the Bellefonte Water System and 
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accordingly, gives direction to any of the consultants that are paid by the Authority.  Please discontinue any and all 
direct communications with any of the consultants working on behalf of the Borough Authority. 
 
You are welcome to communicate directly with the Borough Authority should you have a question or concern.   
 
Thank you very much! 
 
Ralph  
__ 
Ralph W. Stewart, Borough Manager 
Borough of Bellefonte  
301 North Spring Street STE 200 
Bellefonte PA 16823 
Phone:  814-355-1501 x214 

 
 
Sent to Jean on 1/9/2025 
 

Hi Jean, thanks for the informative presentation.  The proposed well sites do not 
appear to create a problem for our proposed stage.  The only well that is close to 
where the stage will go is the one that is closest to the park’s walking track and 
the match factory/railroad tracks.  If that could move a bit away from the very 
corner of the park, I believe we would be clearly out of the way.  Is that possible? 
 
Rick Jacobs, PhD 
 
Emeritus Professor of Psychology, College of Liberal Arts 
Distinguished Honors Faculty, Schreyer Honors College 
Board of Directors, Presidential Leadership Academy 
 
Penn State University 
 

 
 
237 West Linn Street 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 
814.769.9028 
Time Zone: Eastern 
 
Email: rrj@psu.edu 
 
 
Sent to Jean on 1/6/2025 
 
Directly behind the Pelican Snow Cone building, in that corner.  
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Sent from my iPad 
 
Rick Jacobs, PhD 
Emeritus Professor of Psychology, Penn State 
Science Advisor, Talogy 
 
rjacobs@talogy.com 
814.769.9028 
 
On Jan 6, 2025, at 11:52 AM, Jean Ryan <jryan@bartonandloguidice.com> wrote: 

 CAUTION: This email has originated from outside of Talogy. Do not click links or open attachments unless you 
can confirm the sender and know the content is safe. Please report all phishing emails to See Something Say 
Something.  
Rick, 
  
We will be presenting the findings from the geophysical survey at tomorrow’s board meeting. As soon as these are 
presented to the board, I will send you the information that was presented. I can tell you that we did locate with 
confidence where the water is coming from. This means we do now know the area in which we will need to put any 
wells that may be constructed.  
  
Where exactly in the Southeast corner were you looking at? That is near the existing spring correct? 
  
Jean Ryan 
Managing Engineer 
Water Resources 
 
Barton&Loguidice 
Email: jryan@bartonandloguidice.com 
Website | LinkedIn | Twitter | Facebook | Vimeo  
 
The information in this message is confidential and is intended for the identified recipient(s). If you are not an intended recipient, please delete the message and notify the sender 
immediately. Any unauthorized use, disclosure or copying of this message is strictly forbidden and may be subject to legal action. 
From: Rick Jacobs <rjacobs@talogy.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 6, 2025 11:32 AM 
To: Jean Ryan <jryan@bartonandloguidice.com> 
Subject: Talleyrand Park 
  

ATTENTION --> This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or 
unexpected emails. 

Hi Jean, Happy New Year.  I’m wondering if you can give me information regarding 
the work you are doing for the Water Authority and Borough.  Our group is 
especially interested in whether your findings have a bearing on our plan to build 
the stage in the southeast corner. We are anxious to finish our fundraising and 
get on with the project, pending approval from the Borough. 
  

Please let me know.  Thanks. 
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
  
<image001.jpg> 
 
  
237 West Linn Street 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 
814.769.9028 
Time Zone: Eastern 
  
Email: rrj@psu.edu 

 
Sent 12/13/2024 
 
Hi Jean.  Any update on the work at Talleyrand Park.  We are hopeful you will have 
an answer to if our plan for the stage is workable given the project to uncover the 
Big Spring and the associated wells. 
 
Thanks. 
 
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

Received. Rick, thank you for sending the informaƟon. I have passed it on to my team working on this. If anything comes 
up in the meanƟme, please feel free to reach out. 
 
Have a great weekend everyone! 
 
 
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
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2024 1:53 PM 
To: Rick Jacobs <rjacobs@talogy.com> 
Cc: Jean Ryan <jryan@bartonandloguidice.com> 
Subject: RE: One more small request 
 

ATTENTION --> This email came from an external source. Do not open attachments or click on links from unknown senders or 
unexpected emails. 

Sure Rick, no problem.  
 
Hi Jean, 
Rick wanted to make sure you have his email in case you have quesƟons.   
 
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
Sent: Friday, November 8, 2024 1:41 PM 
To: Ralph Stewart <rstewart@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: One more small request 
 

Hi Ralph, I very much appreciate you sending the materials to Jean.  Can you make 
sure she has my email address in the event she has any questions?  Thanks. 
 
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
 

 
 
Science Advisor 
 

 
 

 
 
237 West Linn Street 
Bellefonte, PA 16823 
814.769.9028 
Time Zone: Eastern 
 
E: rjacobs@talogy.com  
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BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

February 3, 2025 - 7:30 p.m. 
301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Council President Barbara Dann) 

The February 3, 2025 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 

p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton, Pro Tempore   

     Ms. Barbara Dann, President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Vice President- ZOOM 

     Ms. Shawna McKean 

     Ms. Rita Purnell 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick  

     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member 

     Ms. Jalyn Meckley,  Jr. Council Member- EXCUSED 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson 

 

STAFF PRESENT   Mr. Bill Witmer, Police Chief  

     Ms. Julie Brooks, Staff  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

NONE 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

 NONE  

 

VI.  COMMUNICATIONS (written) 

Centre County Recycling & Refuse Authority Municipal Newsletter January 2025. No council 

action is requested.  

 

Resident recommendation for Bellefonte Elementary School Property. No council action is 

requested.  

 

Thank you letter to Matt Auman, Superintendent of Public Works, from Bellefonte Quaker 

Cemetery. No council action is requested.  
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PSAB Annual Conference June 1-4, 2025. No council action is requested. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

1. Finance Budget V. Actual December 2024 

2. Finance Budget V. Actual Summary December 2024 

3. General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes January 21st, 2025 

4. Finance Treasurers Report December 2024 

5. Finance Voucher Summary December 2024 

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned to approve the consent agenda with amendments to the minutes. There 

was no second. Roll call vote. Motion to approve Consent Agenda items 1-5 listed above carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

VIII. REPORTS   

Mayor Johnson  

Mayor Johnson reported that he and the new Bellefonte Area School District Superintendent, Roy 

Rakszawski, will partner to hold a Community Advisory Committee meeting on Wednesday, 

February 5, 2025. The meeting is intended to bridge the gap between the district and the 

community. Mayor Johnson will have a report of the meeting at the next Council meeting.  

 

Junior Council Member Report (Mr. Larson) 

• The second quarter ended on January 22, 2025.  

• The Challenge Program visited the High School. This is a new program with a goal to motivate 

high school students to develop good habits that are required to succeed in schools and careers.  

They award money for habits like good attendance, taking STEM courses, community service, 

etc. 

• AP applications were submitted for next year. 

• FBLA attended their regional leadership conference. 3 members received their Jackets. 

• The Cheer team attended their PIAA States competition. 

• Academic Decathlon attended their district competition. 

• Student Council is looking to hold their first pickleball event. 

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 

• Planning Commission will meet on February 10 at 5:00 p.m. 

• HARB will meet on February 11 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

4. Zoning: 
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Motion to consider removing the §575, Article XXI: Signs from the Borough Zoning to its own  

chapter within the Borough Code. (see Memo for rationale). If the motion is approved, council 

would need to hold a public hearing and re-affirm the action prior to it taking effect, due to being 

a Zoning Ordinance Amendment. 

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Cleeton seconded to consider removing the §575, Article XXI: Signs 

from the Borough Zoning to its own chapter within the Borough Code. No discussion. Roll call 

vote. Motion carried.  

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
 

Lighting issue at Masullo Park. Council may take action to change the lighting at Masullo Park. 

No council action was taken. Mr. Matt Auman will be providing more information on this issue 

at a later date.  

 

Public Transit Task Force update. No council action is requested. 

o CATA has agreed to come back to Council on February 18, 2025 with 3 or 4 options. 

o Benner Township is having a meeting with CATA tonight.  

 

Committees of Council. Committees and Chairs have been established by Council President Dann 

and sent out to council members. In addition, two Ad-hoc committees have been formed – Fire 

Department and Ordinance Review/Employee Handbook. No council action is requested. 

 

Work Sessions and Presentations to Council. The schedule of work sessions and the placement of 

presentations will be changing as council moves to sub-committees. Presentations will likely be 

scheduled in the business meeting under oral communications.  

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

There was a request to move the Executive Session meeting from tonight’s meeting to February 

18, 2025. 

 

The Civil Service Commission Rules and Regulations Revisions. The Civil Service 

Commission has approved the Revisions. 

 

McKean motioned and Sedgwick seconded to approve Civil Service Commission Rules and 

Regulations Revisions. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

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
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Approval of Ordinance No. 02032025-01 Amendments to Chapter 530: Vehicle and Traffic.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve Ordinance No. 01212025-01 

Amendments to Chapter 530: Vehicle and Traffic. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

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

 

Approval of Resolution No. 02032025-01 – Use of Force Policy.  

 

McKean motioned and Tosti-Vasey seconded to approve Resolution No. 01212025-01 - Use of 

Force Policy. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

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

 

Shade Tree Commission Volunteer Application. Call for a motion to appoint Jason Ostroskie 

to the Shade Tree Commission. 

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned to table this appointment pending solicitor review.  Discussion included 

outlining the reasons for tabling and solicitor review, as Mr. Ostroskie is a Borough employee. 

Roll call vote. Motion to table carried.  

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

 

 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

NONE 

 

XII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

NONE 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT   

Brachbill motioned to adjourn. McKean seconded.  Meeting adjourned at 7:54pm.  
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Treasurer's Report

2025

Month - January

Account Budgeted Receipts % Budgeted Expenses %

Receipts To Date Received Expenses To Date Spent 

  General 3,784,210 48,855 1.3% 3,784,210 264,870 7.0%

  Streetlighting 109,045 201 0.2% 109,045 5 194 0.2%

  Fire Department 250,925 400 0.2% 250,925 7,468 3.0%

  Fire Equipment 101,390 125 0.1% 101,390 3,726 3.7%

  Parks 137,865 805 0.6% 137,865 384 0.3%

  Water 2,430,915 131,774 5.4% 2,430,915 80,115 3.3%

  Sanitation 4,052,180 143,235 3.5% 4,052,180 131,907 3.3%

  Refuse 1,278,105 88,517 6.9% 1,278,105 53,004 4.1%

  Special Projects 2,133,310 5,908 0.3% 2,133,310 0 0.0%

Liquid Fuels 259,000 88 0.0% 259,000 18,128 7.0%

301 N Spring St 93,840 18,000 19.2% 93,840 2,138 2.3%

  Capital Projects 1,132,860 12,531 1.1% 1,132,860 0 0.0%

  Bulk Water Sales 354,600 1,718 0.5% 354,600 8,592 2.4%

EMS 37,835 2 0.0% 37,835  0 0.0%

Total 16,156,080 452,159 2.8% 16,156,080 570,525 3.5%

Above figures are computer generated

Beg of Month Receipts Expenses End of Month

 General 637,979 157,710 363,952 431,738

 Act 13 29,747 88 0 29,835

 Streetlighting 158,666 1,401 1,297 158,770

 Fire Department 227,124 17,465 10,445 234,144

 Fire Equipment 94,050 10,003 4,839 99,214

 Parks 94,191 2,035 801 95,425

 Water 423,189 163,662 144,706 442,145

 Sanitation 370,885 160,142 327,552 203,475

 Refuse 489,762 104,215 109,550 484,427

 Special Projects 1,788 1 0 1,789

 Capital Projects 253,215 753 0 253,968

 Danone Water 47,903 57,598 57,484 47,945

.

Total 2,828,500 675,073 1,020,626 2,482,875

Above figures are from Bank Statements

Differences due to timing, outstanding checks, etc.
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